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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I am going to

          3  move along. It is my understanding that when you

          4  have important people testifying they are on a

          5  timetable as well. Usually we are waiting for people

          6  who come to testify, but now you are going to have

          7  to wait just a few minutes for my colleagues, but we

          8  are going to move ahead, and if they come in between

          9  Council Member Linares and myself, we will bring

         10  them up-to-date.

         11                 Good morning. Today the Committee on

         12  Education will hold an oversight hearing to review

         13  the status of the safety in our schools.

         14                 School safety has been an active

         15  concern of this Committee for many years now. We

         16  examined this topic at least once a year in an

         17  effort to ensure the safety of the students and

         18  staff of our public schools.

         19                 As Chair of the Education Committee

         20  and as a parent and grandparent, I am very aware of

         21  the importance of this issue. This Committee is

         22  dedicated to monitoring this issue closely and will

         23  continue to do so until we can be sure that our

         24  schools are the safe havens of learning, that our

         25  children and our staff need and deserve.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 We have seen that since our last

          3  hearing on this topic school safety incidents have

          4  risen over 30 percent and the New York City Police

          5  Department now has a critical role in maintaining

          6  the safety in our schools. We therefore believe now

          7  is a very good time to review that improvement the

          8  school system is attempting to make with respect to

          9  the security of our public schools.

         10                 We would now like to welcome before

         11  the Committee, Deputy Chancellor Harry Spence and

         12  Police Commissioner Howard Safir.

         13                 Let me just be very clear, and I

         14  would also encourage both the Commissioner and the

         15  Deputy Chancellor, that in this Committee hearing

         16  this morning, we are not deviating from all the

         17  other issues of this City. It is strictly I am going

         18  to adhere this topic between the Board of Education

         19  and the Police Department on the status on what is

         20  going on in our schools, and I am going to ask my

         21  colleagues and as they come in I will whisper to

         22  them the same kind of format, if anyone attempts,

         23  including my two distinguished guests, to deviate

         24  from that subject, I love to rule people out of

         25  order and I have never ruled a Police Commissioner,
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          2  neither a Deputy Chancellor, out of order, so we are

          3  going to strictly stay within the guidelines this

          4  morning.

          5                 As I indicated before, I have to my

          6  left, Council Member Linares and Councilwoman Karen

          7  Koslowitz. Between the two of you, whatever format

          8  that you have to begin this hearing, you can just

          9  identify yourself for the record, but I just wanted

         10  to make that very clear, because I know there are

         11  some people who use all kinds of forums to bring

         12  their issues to the floor, this is not the time this

         13  morning. The issue this morning is our children in

         14  the school system, and I welcome you to testify.

         15                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Thank you, Madame

         16  Chair. I have with me First Deputy Commissioner

         17  Patrick Kelahur, and Chief James Lawrence, the Chief

         18  of the School Safety Division, and I assure you, you

         19  will not have to rule me out of order.

         20                 Good morning, Madame Chair, and

         21  members of the Education Committee. I am pleased to

         22  be here today with Deputy Chancellor Harry Spence of

         23  the Board of Education to discuss with you the

         24  creation of the School Safety Division of the New

         25  York City Police Department.
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          2                 At the outset, it is important to

          3  emphasize what this merger is not. It is not a plan

          4  to increase the number of police officers in

          5  schools.

          6                 The merger of the Board of

          7  Education's Division of School Safety with the

          8  Police Department represents a historic partnership.

          9  Its mission is to provide a safe learning

         10  environment for both students and teachers.

         11                 This Department's newly created

         12  School Safety Division will utilize the nearly 3,400

         13  personnel that were merged from the Board of

         14  Education to better promote safety in schools.

         15  Simply stated, the Police Department's School Safety

         16  Agents, who were formerly School Safety Officers

         17  with the Board of Education, will be performing the

         18  same function they always have. The significant

         19  difference now is that other Police Department units

         20  are readily accessible to provide support to the

         21  School Safety Division through their resources,

         22  operational knowledge, training and expertise.

         23                 Each borough command now has a

         24  captain designated School Safety Coordinator who

         25  coordinates the use of patrol resources with the
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          2  School Safety Division for the Borough Commander.

          3                 Borough Captains conduct regular

          4  meetings with precinct commander school safety

          5  sergeants, precinct youth officers, and district

          6  superintendents and principals to coordinate

          7  efforts.

          8                 Precinct Commanding Officers also

          9  maintain open relationships with principals to

         10  ensure that schools receive the same kind of police

         11  services that are provided to all the community.

         12  They will jointly develop the school safety plan

         13  with each school's Safety Plan Committee and be a

         14  signatory to its final form. To aid precinct

         15  commanders, each precinct now has a designated

         16  school safety sergeant who visits schools regularly,

         17  monitors the performance of the school safety

         18  personnel, and maintains a liaison with borough

         19  School Safety Coordinators, captains and principals

         20  and district superintendents.

         21                 The merger has not resulted in any

         22  additional police officers being assigned to school.

         23  The approximately 165 police officers assigned to

         24  143 school facilities prior to this merge remained

         25  in place. Any new request by principals or
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          2  superintendents for a police officer to be assigned

          3  will be evaluated by the Board of Education and

          4  provided by the Police Department only after Board

          5  of Education approval, provided such personnel are

          6  available.

          7                 Nevertheless, it should be noted that

          8  all patrol officers and detectives will receive

          9  sensitivity training, emphasizing the importance of

         10  their role in providing school safety services.

         11                 A critical part of the School Safety

         12  Strategy is the establishment and maintenance of an

         13  ongoing working relationship between the school

         14  community and local police personnel. We approach

         15  this goal as equal participants with the schools in

         16  an effort to make the educational environment as

         17  safe and sound as possible for all concerned.

         18                 The School Safety Division's primary

         19  function is to ensure that students are safe within

         20  school facilities. The police will continue to bring

         21  their expertise to bear on external environmental

         22  conditions, such as quality of life concerns around

         23  school environs that may impact directly or

         24  indirectly upon the educational community.

         25                 Most important to this initiative is
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          2  the need for teachers and principals to perceive

          3  that this enhanced support system to deal with

          4  safety and social problems is in place and working

          5  for their mutual benefit.

          6                 The Division of School Safety's

          7  merger with the NYPD will greatly enhance both

          8  precinct commanders' and school principals' ability

          9  to maintain the order and provide security to

         10  support the educational environment. Meetings are

         11  being conducted and will continue to be conducted

         12  with school staff, parents, teachers associations,

         13  United Federation of Teachers and police personnel.

         14                 Precinct commanders will strengthen

         15  this partnership and develop a sense of mutual

         16  responsibility for school safety.

         17                 The security within the schools will

         18  continue to be provided by school safety agents.

         19  However, security and enforcement protocols will be

         20  developed among school safety agents, precinct youth

         21  officers, school safety sergeants, et cetera, to

         22  ensure that enforcement response is appropriate and

         23  timely.

         24                 While police officers will not be

         25  routinely patrolling within school facilities,
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          2  increased operational coordination will be achieved

          3  through having the school safety sergeant assigned

          4  to each precinct interacting with precinct youth

          5  officers, school safety agents and other school

          6  officials to allow for such problem-solving programs

          7  as joint truancy patrols, targeted drug sweeps, and

          8  drug awareness training.

          9                 The NYPD will continue and/or expand

         10  upon existing programs operated in conjunction with

         11  the Board of Education, such as Drug Abuse

         12  Resistance Education, DARE, Gang Resistance

         13  Education Training, GRAT, and the Safe Corridors and

         14  Safe Passage Programs.

         15                 School safety agents will be able to

         16  more completely fulfill their potential as the eyes

         17  and ears for police officers assigned to the

         18  designated streets and subway stations that comprise

         19  the Safe Corridors and Safe Passage Programs.

         20                 This Department will continue its

         21  commitment to children, a commitment which will only

         22  become more comprehensive and fulfilling as we

         23  expand our school safety responsibilities.

         24                 I would now like to ask Deputy

         25  Chancellor Spence to explain to you how our agencies
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          2  arrived at this partnership.

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Thank you,

          4  Commissioner. I want to just take a brief time to

          5  describe the partnership that we in the Police

          6  Department have been putting together and have now I

          7  think we could say formed over the course of the

          8  past few months. It has been my honor and pleasure

          9  to work very closely in that process with Chief

         10  James Lawrence, the head of the School Safety

         11  Division, an appointment for which we are deeply

         12  appreciative to the Police Commissioner.

         13                 We believe this was the right person

         14  for the right job at the right time, and it has been

         15  a great pleasure as we built that joint partnership

         16  to work with the Department and in particular with

         17  Chief Lawrence, to watch the leadership that he has

         18  brought to this process and assist and support him

         19  in that effort.

         20                 Obviously the concept behind this

         21  partnership is a fundamental belief that the

         22  Chancellor holds very deeply that in order for

         23  education to occur in a school, in order for

         24  children to learn and teachers to teach, a school

         25  must be orderly and safe. That is a kind of basic
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          2  precondition of the possibilities of learning.

          3  Children who are anxious or fearful are not children

          4  who are going to be able to focus on learning, and

          5  the time when we are seeking to raise standards

          6  across the system so that all children learn to

          7  higher standards, frankly, than the world has ever

          8  required of the public or any education system

          9  before, we have to raise the standards for all of

         10  us, and a piece of this has been to strengthen our

         11  capacity as an institution to provide that safe and

         12  secure learning environment.

         13                 That is both in school and in the

         14  areas surrounding schools. In truth, of course,

         15  historically in New York and across the country, the

         16  time when children are actually most at risk is not

         17  in school, children are most at risk in traveling to

         18  and from school. The largest number of incidents in

         19  which children, in which safety is seriously

         20  abridged occur traveling to and from school. So,

         21  close coordination between in-school safety and

         22  security and the surrounding neighborhood transit

         23  corridors and the like is a central part of assuring

         24  parents that when they see their children off to go

         25  to school each day, that those children are in a
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          2  safe and secure circumstance throughout the day. And

          3  a critical piece certainly of this partnership is

          4  the greatly increased opportunities for coordination

          5  between  in school and neighborhood and therefore

          6  the assurance of a continuum of safety throughout

          7  the entire day, from the moment the child leaves

          8  home to the moment the child returns home.

          9                 Central to this, and I think a point

         10  on which all of us agree is that schools exist for

         11  the educational and educational mission, that we

         12  work together in support of that educational

         13  mission, but central also to this is the recognition

         14  that in being able to draw on the extraordinary

         15  expertise and knowledge and experience of the NYPD

         16  in the area of safety and combine that with the work

         17  of school staffs, principals, chief administrative

         18  officer of the school, combine the NYPD experience

         19  with our on-school safety folks historically of

         20  their work, bringing it now into much closer

         21  conjunction with that experience and expertise of

         22  the NYPD that we can create safer schools and

         23  therefore schools in which more learning occurs.

         24                 So, we are very pleased to have the

         25  great benefit of this kind of much closer
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          2  coordination.

          3                 Shared principal also is that the

          4  principal is in fact the chief administrative

          5  officer of the school. Some things that the

          6  Commissioner and Chancellor have talked a good deal

          7  about obviously is all of us believe deeply in the

          8  notion of the importance of a single point of

          9  accountability and a single point of authority, and

         10  we of course hold principals accountable for all

         11  activities in the school, including safety activity,

         12  so that there has to be a close coordination between

         13  the school staff and the police and the school

         14  safety agents.

         15                 In similar fashion, as I understand

         16  it, the Commissioner holds borough captains and

         17  precinct commanders accountable, as the single point

         18  of accountability for all activities within the

         19  geographic area, including what happens in schools.

         20  So there is an overlapping understanding of the ways

         21  in which each of our organizations brings our own

         22  accountability procedures to bear, to focus on the

         23  needs of schools and through that I think, and in

         24  coordinating those two systems we greatly strengthen

         25  our capacity.
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          2                 But all of that does of course depend

          3  on very close cooperation and consultation of the

          4  process.

          5                 So, in order to facilitate that

          6  coordination and cooperation, we developed an MOU, a

          7  memorandum of understanding, between ourselves and

          8  the City and the Police Department, which provided

          9  for several key points in the development of this

         10  partnerships:

         11                 One, the NYPD would supervise,

         12  recruit, hire and train all school safety agents,

         13  and we transferred 3,400 school safety agents to the

         14  supervision of the NYPD on December 20th of this

         15  past year.

         16                 Two, that the Chancellor and the

         17  Commissioner together would jointly essentially

         18  develop a deployment plan. The Commissioner would,

         19  based on statistics and data that the Department was

         20  aware of through its work with school safety would

         21  develop a preliminary deployment plan after

         22  discussion with the Chancellor about goals of the

         23  Board of Education, that deployment plan would be

         24  shared with the Chancellor, the Chancellor would

         25  look to that plan for its congruence with the
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          2  Board's educational goals and based on that joint

          3  agreement on a deployment plan would be

          4  accomplished, then the Chancellor would have of

          5  course the right to say I am trying to do this in

          6  middle schools, let's see if we can move this around

          7  and so on.

          8                 So, the deployment process would be

          9  one under the supervision of the Police

         10  Commissioner, but with the Chancellor's full

         11  knowledge, participation and ultimately a shared

         12  plan in that sense.

         13                 The NYPD, at the same time, is added

         14  as a signatory to every one of our 1,100 school

         15  safety plans, so every individual school which has

         16  historically developed a school safety plan through

         17  parent, teacher and administrator consultation, that

         18  plan would now have a fourth signatory in addition

         19  to the parent representatives, teacher

         20  representatives, administrative representatives, and

         21  that would be the NYPD. Again, a kind of contract

         22  among those who are most responsible for the safety

         23  of our children, about how jointly, what roles each

         24  of them will take up, what their shared plans are to

         25  ensure the safety of kids.
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          2                 Consultation, constant consultation

          3  between principals and school safety agents, and

          4  therefore the NYPD, an agreement on all sides that

          5  each party, the school safety agents and principals

          6  would keep each other informed on an ongoing basis

          7  during every school day of any security concerns,

          8  incidents or circumstances that warranted attention

          9  from a safety perspective.

         10                 Established a chain of appeals to

         11  resolve any disputes so that the principal and the

         12  precinct commander would resolve any areas of

         13  difficulty at the school level, if the principal and

         14  precinct commander couldn't resolve it and the

         15  superintendent and borough commander would address

         16  the issue, ultimately it would go to, first

         17  obviously to Jim Lawrence, as Chief of the School

         18  Safety Division, Greg Thomas and myself on our side

         19  overseeing the Board's concerns in this area,

         20  ultimately to, if need be, the jointly appointed

         21  Mayorally and Chancellor-appointed Committee, joint

         22  committee that is established in the MOU, with equal

         23  representation appointed by the Chancellor and the

         24  Mayor, as a kind of reflection, evaluation,

         25  discussion and coordination committee that could
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          2  also resolve key issues if we got to that point.

          3                 Imposition of discipline remains,

          4  obviously school discipline remains a Board of

          5  Education function. We see a continuum again of

          6  ensuring safety in schools that starts with school

          7  discipline for matters that don't anywhere near

          8  arise to the level of criminal activity, but

          9  nonetheless are part of our need to ensure a safe

         10  environment, and part of our pedagogical

         11  responsibility to educate children in learning to be

         12  members of a civil community, to educate children in

         13  developing their own self control so there isn't any

         14  need ultimately as they become adults for outside

         15  forces to be brought to bear to ensure safety. So we

         16  have an educational function around this issue, as

         17  well as a safety function and so school discipline

         18  remains the responsibility of principal and

         19  superintendent working closely with the NYPD, and in

         20  consultation about how each of these processes, our

         21  own school discipline process and in more serious

         22  cases the processes of the criminal justice system,

         23  how they can work in coordination to ensure the

         24  safest environment in the school.

         25                 You know, there may be that point
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          2  when a principal says to the school safety agent,

          3  you know this kid just really needs a stronger

          4  message, and on this incident let's deal with it in

          5  a more severe way.  Or similarly the police may say,

          6  look, this kid, we really think is a kid who is

          7  going through a tough time, let's deal -- so that

          8  there is a constant coordination about how to use

          9  these two systems, one a school system process and

         10  one the criminal justice process, to best effect

         11  safety in the school.

         12                 Bifurcated incident reporting, so

         13  that in fact all non-criminal incidents are reported

         14  to the Board of Education, and we have continued to

         15  maintain non-criminal incident reporting, and

         16  provide on regular frequent basis to the NYPD

         17  statistical summaries of non-criminal incidents so

         18  they are aware of trends within schools, but at the

         19  same time non-criminal activities are kept within

         20  the realm of the education world, rather than in the

         21  criminal justice world.

         22                 Whereas, the criminal incidents, and

         23  those of a criminal nature, were reported obviously

         24  and appropriately as they always have been, long

         25  before this agreement, reported to the Police
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          2  Department, and they will maintain data on criminal

          3  activities in school.

          4                 The Joint Committee to oversee the

          5  pilot program, I spoke to earlier a joint committee

          6  appointed by the Mayor and the Commissioner.

          7                 Principal of the school continues as

          8  chief administrative officer to be responsible for

          9  the overall operations of the school for the

         10  development of the school safety plans, school-based

         11  discipline, responsible for constant communication

         12  and consultation, again, as they always have been.

         13  Responsible also for the confidentiality of student

         14  records for ensuring compliance with state and

         15  federal law on the issues of confidentiality,

         16  responsible for incident reporting, both verbal and

         17  written, depending on the nature of the incident,

         18  and, finally, a continuing role which we are working

         19  out, to continue the role that the principal has had

         20  in the past for input into the evaluation of school

         21  safety agents. Since school safety agents continue

         22  to be a critical part of the life of the school

         23  community, obviously the Department needs to know

         24  how is this person working, if I understand, if I

         25  can represent my understanding of the Department's
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          2  perspective, needs to know obviously how is this

          3  person working within the school community. The

          4  principal will continue to provide a formal feedback

          5  to the Department on the School Safety Agent's

          6  performance, and to the extent that there are

          7  difficulties there, they will be resolved through

          8  the consultation process that I spoke of earlier.

          9                 We at the BOE have then established a

         10  small unit of I think just under 100 people or so

         11  that maintains a few functions, but also expands one

         12  we think very important and critical function we

         13  think at this point in time. Those we have

         14  maintained obviously are the recordkeeping on

         15  non-criminal incidence, and all of the data

         16  collection on that, we have maintained actually

         17  build security for our administrative offices and

         18  executive security.

         19                 But the really exciting part of this

         20  change for us has been that the assumption of the

         21  NYPD of day-to-day oversight of the School Safety

         22  Agents has really freed us to be able to turn our

         23  focus to a broader and very important set of issues,

         24  and we have established within the Division of

         25  School Safety and Prevention Services something
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          2  called a unit on technical assistance for children

          3  at risk.

          4                 This is a unit that will work to

          5  coordinate very closely not only with the NYPD, but

          6  also with the Division of Juvenile Justice, with the

          7  Correction Department, with the ACS, with Children's

          8  Services, with Probation and Parole and other

          9  organizations, all of the various components of sort

         10  of the bureaucratic structures that we interface

         11  with are the key organizations that we are faced

         12  with that share a responsibility for the care and

         13  protection of children in varying ways.

         14                 And what we have of course seen over

         15  the years is the poor coordination between those

         16  units is something that ultimately is costly to

         17  children.

         18                 A classic example with ACS where if

         19  foster children are in a group home and then

         20  released from that group home at a point where the

         21  group home has served its purpose, the kids are

         22  doing better, the child is ready now to move back

         23  into a mainstream setting and a stable mainstream

         24  setting, at that point in time historically, because

         25  of lack of coordination between ACS and the Board of
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          2  Ed, the student often may not be placed in a school,

          3  get his or her formal placement for weeks or even

          4  months because of essentially incongruities in the

          5  regulatory processes of the two agencies. We want to

          6  fix that, fix that so a child coming out of a group

          7  home, for example, moves right straight into a

          8  school as quickly as possible, get normalized and

          9  stabilized as quickly as possible, just completed

         10  that process with DJJ, so that kids don't fall

         11  between the cracks as they come out of DJJ

         12  facilities but instead move quickly into a

         13  normalized situation.

         14                 So, the Division of Technical

         15  Assistance for Children at Risk will focus on

         16  ensuring that all of the systems that work with

         17  children in the City are systems that support the

         18  education of those children and that move quickly to

         19  ensure that children are engaged in and are both

         20  present for and engaged in successful education at

         21  each step of their career.

         22                 We have established an emergency

         23  information center, which is simply the unit that

         24  ensures continuing communication between central and

         25  field about any incidents that occur, and those
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          2  basically are the key functions of the Board of Ed

          3  central, remaining functions of the Board of Ed

          4  Division of School Safety and Prevention Services.

          5                 Part of the transition involved four

          6  key sets of activities we were involved in, one was

          7  a budget agreement executed between the Board and

          8  the City. Obviously when 3,400 School Safety Agents

          9  move over to the supervision of the Police

         10  Department we needed to establish budget protocols

         11  for them.

         12                 Two, the staff themselves, on all of

         13  the various personnel steps that had to be taken for

         14  that transfer on December 20th was worked through.

         15                 Finally -- excuse me. Then meetings

         16  were held among the NYPD staff with superintendents,

         17  principals, parents. I attended several of those,

         18  Jim Lawrence and I spoke at a number of those, and

         19  so those sort of introductory meetings with

         20  superintendents, principals, parents and NYPD folks

         21  have occurred across the City.

         22                 And finally, joint training has been

         23  conducted. First of all, there is a joint training

         24  committee which brings together NYPD personnel with

         25  principals and superintendents of the Board of
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          2  Education and together they are designing the

          3  training, both for school personnel and for NYPD

          4  personnel, for school safety agents, NYPD

          5  supervisory staff, and for Board of Ed staff. So it

          6  really is an integrated training process that

          7  reflects that knowledge and expertise of each of the

          8  organizations and speaks to this need to create this

          9  kind of, this sort of specialized form of activity

         10  around the support of safety and order, which is

         11  particular to the educational setting and reflects

         12  the special character of the educational setting.

         13                 So that I must admit I think all of

         14  us have felt that the joint training group has

         15  really been extremely successful. It has been a

         16  very, very close collaboration and a very conductive

         17  collaboration, and produced I think some first rate

         18  training, both for Board of Ed personnel and for

         19  NYPD staff.

         20                 That group will also be working then

         21  on finalizing the role of the principal in providing

         22  input into the evaluation of school safety agents.

         23  There was obviously a great deal of training that

         24  went on in December and January during the

         25  transition, but that training will be ongoing.
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          2                 One of the great strengths that is

          3  clear to us at the Board of Ed in this partnership

          4  is that the NYPD has a constant ongoing training

          5  function which both, certainly school safety agents

          6  and the supervisors and others can constantly be

          7  engaged in so that there is annually a regular flow

          8  of training occurring, not just as had been the case

          9  prior to this transition for new school safety

         10  agents entering the force but also continuing

         11  education for key personnel in the process

         12  throughout their career.

         13                 And then similarly some of that

         14  actually can also be deployed so that it supports

         15  the role of the Board of Ed employees in their role

         16  of working to ensure the safety and security.

         17                 So, we have been, as I say, this has

         18  been I think a transition that all of us have felt

         19  has been productive, has to date worked I think with

         20  a great deal of smoothness. We continue to monitor

         21  it on both sides very closely to ensure that

         22  particularly in these early stages that all of the

         23  folks that are doing new roles, taking on new tasks,

         24  or working under new supervision, that any possible

         25  confusion or the like are cleared up quickly, and we
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          2  have had the great benefit of very close

          3  coordination with the leadership of the Department

          4  around the work of the safety work in the schools.

          5                 I just want to give you one quick

          6  example --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I want it to be

          8  quick because I have some questions I want to raise

          9  to the Commissioner.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Just one

         11  quick example. We had an incident, for example, in a

         12  school involving a young woman who witnessed a crime

         13  she believed and was fearful that it might be known

         14  to the perpetrator that she witnessed the crime, had

         15  great difficulty getting the parents' cooperation in

         16  this. We were concerned that this woman, young

         17  woman, a student in the schools, needed protection,

         18  but also knew, given the volatile circumstance in

         19  the family that it was very important that this

         20  young woman really be treated with care and

         21  sensitivity in the first encounter with the Criminal

         22  Justice System.

         23                 This is the kind of incident that

         24  rises all the time. In the past, if the school had a

         25  good relationship with the precinct captain or a
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          2  commander, by luck of the draw that young woman

          3  might or might not get the assignment of the right

          4  kind of person from the NYPD to work with her.

          5                 We were able to immediately contact

          6  Jim Lawrence, who was able to work with the

          7  Detective Division and a very successful outcome

          8  resulted from that.

          9                 That is just one example of the kind

         10  of coordination that is now occurring, that used to

         11  be sometimes occur and sometimes not, and frankly,

         12  too often not, either because of lack of knowledge,

         13  communication, whatever.

         14                 Today there are structures in place

         15  that allow us to quickly mobilize together as entire

         16  organizations to address everything from large scale

         17  issues to that particular young woman's urgent

         18  circumstance, and that kind of coordination has been

         19  really felt enormously gratifying for us at the

         20  Board of Ed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I am very pleased

         22  that the testimony that both you and the

         23  Commissioner gave us this morning clears up some of

         24  the issues.

         25                 I think that what I would like to do
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          2  is to talk to you about many of the kinds of

          3  questions that have been raised to me on what

          4  parents, and who parents might be privy to be part

          5  of the Committee, but we know that the parents of

          6  that child we really want to reach are not a part of

          7  that process, and I don't know what outreach

          8  communication do they have for other parents to let

          9  them know that this is a concept, this is a format

         10  on how the Police Department and the Board of Ed is

         11  working together.

         12                 I know one of the areas happen to be

         13  recordkeeping. The other area that I have been

         14  getting is the sensitivity. Are we talking about

         15  training that includes sensitivity?

         16                 You know, when we are talking about

         17  sensitivity on both sides, both Board of Ed and

         18  Police Department, can very well benefit from that

         19  kind of a session that we can put in place something

         20  that mandates that if you are part of a school team

         21  that there have been sensitivity training on the --

         22  I am not talking in terms of this personality, I am

         23  talking in terms of children, different children in

         24  different areas, Special Ed kids that we know in

         25  Special Ed for various reasons may act out faster
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          2  than a child who may be just in regular education,

          3  that those personnels that are dealing with these

          4  issues in school are aware of the different kinds of

          5  problems that could occur because of. Is there

          6  anything that comes in place there to compensate

          7  that question? It could be to either one of you?

          8                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Yes, I agree,

          9  Councilwoman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Could you

         11  identify yourself for the record.

         12                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: I am Chief Lawrence,

         13  Commanding Officer, School Safety Division.

         14                 Early in the process after being

         15  given the assignment by the Commissioner, after

         16  going around visiting a number of schools just to

         17  find out what was going on in the schools, early on

         18  I found out that every school was different, and

         19  there is a different culture in every school. School

         20  is different than the street also. It is different

         21  dealing with a group of people on a street corner

         22  creating a condition, than dealing with conditions

         23  in schools. So we have taken extra pains with that

         24  training committee to make sure that we have that

         25  sensitivity training, conflict resolution, diversity
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          2  training. We had representatives from District 75,

          3  Special Ed, make presentations to the sergeants and

          4  the captains who were trained in early December, and

          5  we plan on giving that training departmentwide as

          6  part of the in-service training program.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: One of the other

          8  questions that was addressed briefly were

          9  recordkeeping. Parents who are afraid that their

         10  child who has had an outbreak that may not even

         11  impact on them later on, that it would be on the

         12  record. And then if the efforts between the two come

         13  together in this kind of a situation, how would

         14  incidents be written up, especially when it might

         15  involve an officer? Who would be keeping that

         16  record?

         17                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: If it is a

         18  non-criminal record, it will be kept by the Board of

         19  Education, except in certain areas which we are in

         20  the process of working out a protocol for.

         21                 But one thing which I know is what is

         22  the primary concern of the parent is we are not

         23  going to criminalize anything that is in an incident

         24  report. The information would only be used for us to

         25  do better in school safety.
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          2                 So, somebody who is involved in a

          3  non-criminal incident is not going to suddenly have

          4  a criminal record as a result of that incident. And

          5  I know that is the primary concern of most parents.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: The other point

          7  on the positive side, being very close to Thomas

          8  Jefferson High School, and I say that with a great

          9  deal of pride, that we had many serious incidents in

         10  that school, and there was an officer assigned to

         11  that school for quite some time, I don't know how we

         12  can encourage people to disappear in the community,

         13  or mesh in with the community, but this officer has

         14  been so great and so every time I look at a

         15  community function I see him there and he is almost

         16  like a part of that community.

         17                 I don't know if it is his own time. I

         18  don't know if he moved where the school programs are

         19  promoted, but I do know that this officer has now

         20  become known throughout the community. You see him

         21  -- I know when you are short, you know, the

         22  sensitivity of the community is very good because

         23  this officer also, I see him at some of the church

         24  functions, if there is something going on that he is

         25  there, and he is now getting to know the community,
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          2  he already knows the community, and I don't know if

          3  that is a mandatory kind of situation but it is

          4  helpful to be able to look up and say, oh, that is

          5  the officer, if you don't know his name, that is the

          6  officer from Thomas Jefferson High School.

          7                 And I can say that personally because

          8  I don't believe there have been the kind of Thomas

          9  Jefferson High School that it started out to be. I

         10  would want to think it is very positive, the kind of

         11  situation that the atmosphere that is in that school

         12  now is very much different from what it was before

         13  we had some serious incidents. I know the officer

         14  personally because he makes it his business to come

         15  over and communicate with you.

         16                 I spent 11 days in South Carolina

         17  this past summer, and every day in the paper there

         18  was an article that dealt with South Carolina,

         19  bringing police into the middle schools, and I was

         20  very interested in that. In fact, I think that I am

         21  going to go back to visit one of those schools to

         22  see exactly how they are working out.

         23                 But it was interesting because as a

         24  Southerner I know how sensitive parents are, but you

         25  have to know that their problems are no different
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          2  than our problems here, and I wanted to see how they

          3  are working out.

          4                 Up to this point, has there been any

          5  kind of evaluation that tells you that you have to

          6  revisit an area to make it better in your

          7  relationship between the Board of Ed?

          8                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: No. Presently we are

          9  evaluating the whole operation of the School Safety

         10  Division.  But particularly what you are talking

         11  about, there has been no evaluation of that, but one

         12  thing I just took part in a conference of school

         13  safety chiefs in large urban areas throughout the

         14  country and one thing that I noticed that was

         15  different, like you said, there are police officers

         16  that they are putting in the middle schools, right?

         17  With guns, right? And most of the large urban areas

         18  have police officers assigned to School Safety

         19  Division with guns in schools, and that is not our

         20  plan.

         21                 Our plan is to create an environment

         22  around the school which will spillover into the

         23  schools and make the kids feel safer, which I think

         24  we can do that without guns, and keep discipline --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I am not sure
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          2  whether there were guns or not, but I do know there

          3  was no speculation that there were guns, but they

          4  had been voted upon to have policemen in all their

          5  middle schools.

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: On the

          7  evaluation question, we are of course just really

          8  six weeks into this process and so there is an

          9  ongoing kind of constant monitoring and review that

         10  we all do and then constant consultation so that we

         11  can quickly identify any tensions or difficulties

         12  that emerge, I think it is actually going very, very

         13  smoothly.

         14                 The MOU, the Memorandum of

         15  Understanding, does provide for an annual evaluation

         16  by the Joint Committee, and that certainly will be a

         17  task towards the end of this calendar year that I am

         18  sure the Joint Committee will take up for a full

         19  scale review and evaluation to give us feedback,

         20  strengthen our constant continuous improvement, as

         21  they say in the management business, so we can do

         22  continual improvement in this partnership.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Has your MOU been

         24  finalized?

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: The MOU is
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          2  finalized. The Joint Committee is not fully formed

          3  yet, but both the Mayor and the Chancellor,

          4  considering --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I was going to

          6  make a recommendation. I have not talked to my

          7  Committee about it, but I would like a

          8  recommendation that when you need support of your

          9  effort and it impacts as this subject is impacted,

         10  we need to, as an Education Committee we need to at

         11  least be given an opportunity to say would you like

         12  one of your Committee members to sit in on some of

         13  your planning sessions. It helps us to help each

         14  other in trying to promote the kind of relationships

         15  that we are thinking about, and now I am thinking

         16  about the fact that you have not shared that MOU

         17  with me, so I know you will later on, right?

         18                 We are not in tune with being

         19  negative, we want to be supportive of anything that

         20  impacts positive on our children, even negative and

         21  make it right. We might not always agree on the

         22  process but we most certainly can be on the same

         23  page and open for recommendations.

         24                 You had mentioned something as it

         25  related to discipline issues, can you explain what
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          2  you mean when you talk about discipline, does the

          3  Police Department have no role in the discipline? Do

          4  they have, you have joint discipline roles that you

          5  play in the discipline process? Does the police take

          6  the child to the office? Does the police discipline?

          7  Is it set up in a dean kind of setting? What

          8  relationship does the dean have with the police? Do

          9  they share an office? Will they be sharing an

         10  office? Do they have conferences with each other?

         11  And in your planning process, I want to know if, in

         12  essence, the Police who are assigned to that school,

         13  have assessed to planning, proper planning that the

         14  principal conducts with teachers, et cetera?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Well,

         16  certainly in the discipline process there is, as I

         17  said, a continuum that goes all the way from a

         18  reprimand to a child, to a principal suspension, to

         19  a superintendent suspension. As you know a

         20  superintendent suspension is longer and more severe

         21  than a principal suspension. There is a code of

         22  discipline that lays out what the appropriate

         23  suspension will be for various kinds of infractions.

         24                 And then at the upper end of that

         25  scale, as you move into far more serious events, you
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          2  begin to move into areas that also have a criminal

          3  justice impact when you are talking about weapons,

          4  drugs, serious assaults and sexual assaults, the

          5  like, you obviously are moving into the continuum of

          6  criminal activity. So, there needs to be constant

          7  coordination between principals and their staff and

          8  the deans in particular in schools that have deans,

          9  and school safety agents. There certainly are

         10  instances, frequent instances, where a school safety

         11  agent may come across an incident that is not a

         12  criminal incident but is appropriate for school

         13  discipline, bring that to that student, to the

         14  principal or the dean, and obviously assure that the

         15  incident is brought to the attention of the school

         16  staff so that it can be dealt with as an appropriate

         17  discipline issue.

         18                 So, in a similar fashion school staff

         19  may witness criminal activities in which case it is

         20  their responsibility to bring those criminal

         21  activities to the awareness of the school safety

         22  agents and the like so that they are immediately

         23  dealt with appropriately as well.

         24                 So, it is a very close coordination,

         25  there is daily ongoing constant communication. Both
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          2  Chief Lawrence and I heard when we met with

          3  principals prior to, or just as the transition was

          4  occurring, a key concern from principals who said,

          5  you know, school safety agents are members of the

          6  school family and must remain so, and I think we

          7  share a firm commitment to being sure that that is

          8  the case, and as in any healthy family there must be

          9  lots of communication, so that discussion goes on

         10  daily and all the time.

         11                 And then the decisions about how best

         12  to deal with an issue are, even in the case of

         13  criminal incidents, if an arrest is not immediately

         14  required to ensure the restoration of safety, if it

         15  is not an emergency or a highly aggravated situation

         16  that requires an immediate arrest, there is an

         17  agreement that the School Safety Agent and the

         18  police will confer with the principal prior to

         19  making a final decision on this question, even in

         20  criminal cases. That is I think an unusual provision

         21  that I think was a shared sense of the special

         22  circumstances of a school where its safety within an

         23  institutional setting and there is a kind of where

         24  all of the activities of police and school staff and

         25  others have to come together in support of each and
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          2  every kid's education. So, there is even a formal

          3  agreement about prior consultation before making a

          4  decision, except in urgent or emergency cases on

          5  even arrest questions. So, very close consultation

          6  is really the theme of all of this, and close

          7  coordination between all of the members of this

          8  school family.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: There is another

         10  situation that I believe could help, be very helpful

         11  to parents to know, those kinds of rules that govern

         12  policing in school by jointly sponsoring a booklet

         13  about policing in the public school children or some

         14  kind of book that tells parents this is required.

         15                 Another question that was raised

         16  quite a lot is, that if my child gets in trouble,

         17  would I get a telephone call from the Police

         18  Department or the Board of Education?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: I think,

         20  first of all, on the terms of a booklet we are right

         21  now jointly preparing a kind of question and answer

         22  format for parents that will provide them with more

         23  detailed information they can refer to and have

         24  available to them, that will be ready in the near

         25  future, certainly this spring.
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          2                 Overall, I think in terms of

          3  notification it would depend on the severity of the

          4  incident. I think it is fair to say if it is

          5  obviously a school discipline issue, the parent

          6  would hear from the school. If it is a kid bringing

          7  a gun to school, they are going to probably hear

          8  from the police first. They also will hear from the

          9  school, they must also hear from the school.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Is that what is

         11  happening right now? If the police finds on the kid,

         12  the Police Department notifies the parent or et

         13  cetera? We are still talking about children who are

         14  under age but carry heavy luggage.

         15                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: If the child, for

         16  instance, is carrying a gun, it would be us who

         17  would notify the parents.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: The Police

         19  Department?

         20                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The Police

         21  Department.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Now, since

         23  carrying a weapon would raise certainly the criminal

         24  piece but also raises a school suspension,

         25  ultimately there will be coordination between the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  school and the Police Department and the need for

          3  communication with the parent by both parties.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: But that is going

          5  on right now.

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Yes, it is

          7  going on right now.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Before this whole

          9  process. So, we are not really talking about any

         10  kind of change other than the bodies being on

         11  premises, versus, you know, police being called to

         12  come in to arrest the child because of a gun. You

         13  are just talking about a step further, the police

         14  are on the premises and the same thing takes place.

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Prior to

         16  this partnership, if a student was found with a

         17  weapon in a school, the Board of Ed regulations

         18  required the school to notify the Police Department

         19  immediately, so even before the partnership the

         20  police were immediately involved in an incident of

         21  that kind in the same way they are today, not a

         22  major change at all. This is really, there is a

         23  great deal of continuity in this relationship from

         24  that point of view.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I am going to
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          2  stop a minute because I know we have been joined by

          3  Councilman Martin Malave-Dilan from Brooklyn.

          4                 But I wanted to raise this question

          5  between the two of you while the Commissioner was

          6  here. We have some people here from our Finance

          7  Department, I was under the impression that tax levy

          8  positions that has been transferred from the Board

          9  of Education to the Police Department constitute a

         10  permanent position under the Police Department, no?

         11                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No.

         12                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Are you talking about

         13  the fact that the School Safety Agents are per diem

         14  employees?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Well, I know you

         16  have some per diem, but you also have permanent

         17  people. Their tax levy positions was transferred

         18  over to you.

         19                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: And I just wanted

         21  to know, are those people still in the same status?

         22  Are they in a status with you in the same capacity

         23  or with the Board of Education?

         24                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: Yes, they were

         25  transferred in the same capacity that they were in
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          2  at the Board of Education.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Under whom?

          4                 CHIEF LAWRENCE: To the Police

          5  Department. And that is as per the MOU, that was

          6  specifically addressed in the MOU, that we had to

          7  take them exactly as they were.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: That was a

          9  question that Finance Department had asked me to

         10  raise.

         11                 Any additional people, because you

         12  are now in the -- you are in charge, you are in

         13  charge of the Police Department that now came over

         14  from the Office of School Security. You are now

         15  going to be the agent that hires, that trains, and

         16  they would be in the same kind of capacity under you

         17  as they would have been under the Board of

         18  Education; am I correct?

         19                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That is correct.

         20  We took them in the same status as they had before.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: But the new ones

         22  will come on as the same kind of group under the

         23  school security?

         24                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: That's right.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Well, I don't
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          2  have any problems with that.

          3                 I did a little bit of homework, you

          4  have to know, I questioned some of the school

          5  security people, they don't seem to have any

          6  problems. In fact, some of them welcome the kind of

          7  change. I think there were people who were so busy

          8  trying to get into other business until they missed

          9  the whole scope on people who were directly involved

         10  with the process, and that process, how can you work

         11  out within that kind of setting going from one kind

         12  of situation to another, and the positive feedback

         13  that I got from some of the people that I got from

         14  some of the people that I didn't even know, I just

         15  asked people for names of people and questioned

         16  them, they have no problem whatsoever.

         17                 Again, I am going to stop and let my

         18  colleagues raise some questions. We are concerned

         19  about those areas that we touched both,

         20  Commissioner, you and the Board of Education. In

         21  fact, I am going to speak to Speaker Vallone about

         22  this Committee visiting a place that has already

         23  been there for quite some time to see if we need to

         24  go and see exactly what the changes are in some

         25  large urban cities and we will depend on you in
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          2  giving us a recommendation. I am sure you have been

          3  there.

          4                 But most certainly when you are

          5  making major changes, Commissioner, and the Board of

          6  Ed, we are not your enemy, we are your friend, and

          7  we want to be able to give the right information to

          8  parents because we are on the front line

          9  irregardless of some people feeling that they might

         10  be on the front line in education and various

         11  communities. Every Councilperson is on the front

         12  line for any criticism that deals with every bone in

         13  the City of New York, and we want to be able to give

         14  proper answers to those questions.

         15                 We are not about business of

         16  deviating from what our concept is to have a safer,

         17  healthy situation for our children. We want to make

         18  sure that we be a part of that process in giving the

         19  right answers. So, the Memorandum of Understanding,

         20  I need to see that so I can digest that through

         21  Diana Blanc who is so able right now, I will have to

         22  catch her before she moves out of the way again on

         23  maternity, but however, we do want to be aware of

         24  even situations that occur, in my district, I don't

         25  know how operates, I am told they operate a little
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          2  different than I do. I have a relationship with my

          3  -- and I can still say my Police Department, who

          4  called me before I leave out in the morning if there

          5  is a major issue going on in my area, and it is very

          6  helpful when you approach between when you leave

          7  home and where you are going, you know such and such

          8  a thing happened, I already know about it, and it is

          9  helpful for me to respond to it.

         10                 The same with the Board of Education.

         11  Most of the time my office is involved. It does not

         12  happen throughout the entire City of New York. I

         13  speak to my office, even though some of them still

         14  look surprised when I say, hello, I am a Southerner,

         15  and we tend to speak to people first no matter who

         16  we know. So, I have established that relationship

         17  with my Police Department, and sometimes if one

         18  slipped through the cracks, Inspector of that

         19  precinct knows within that day that somebody didn't

         20  let me know what was going on so that I would be in

         21  a position -- because you have to know, our street

         22  communications is very much different from your

         23  street communications, people are going to tell it

         24  how it is and then there are going to be a few who

         25  are going to add on a little bit and then if we got
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          2  the proper report, then we would be in a position to

          3  be supportive of, sometimes not supportive of what

          4  is going on, so I welcome that kind of relationship

          5  in all of my -- in the entire City of New York, if

          6  it can be, it should be.

          7                 Council Member Linares and my

          8  community don't differ that much, but inasmuch as I

          9  might be more aggressive, and, Commissioner, I make

         10  them change my radio battery too when they change

         11  theirs, so you know I am on top of my issues, and I

         12  want to be on top of issues as your police extends

         13  it, and I am only talking to you now and I know you

         14  are going to leave and we are not going to have an

         15  opportunity to say it again to you, but I want you

         16  to know that this is the kind of Committee that

         17  works with, and we expect those kinds of questions

         18  that -- I have some other questions that I think I

         19  am going to ask the Counsel for the Education

         20  Committee to put in writing to you that I am not

         21  going to have time to get to, but I really would

         22  like a response, and both of you will get the same

         23  type of questions.

         24                 Spence is an old person that comes --

         25  I think he loves to come before this Education
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          2  Committee. I know the people out there, our audience

          3  is very pleased with the hearings that the Education

          4  Committee give, because they said it is very

          5  informative, they know what is going on throughout

          6  this City of New York. I think all of us need to

          7  think in terms of our Crosswalks who help us to get

          8  the word out on who we are, rather than someone

          9  telling other people who we are. And on that note, I

         10  just thank you for coming to testify.

         11                 Council Member Linares.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Good morning,

         13  Commissioner, and Deputy Chancellor. Thank you for

         14  your presentation this morning. I think it was good

         15  to hear that so far the phase of implementation of

         16  this merger that raised a lot of anxiety,

         17  particularly with parents, teachers, principals, and

         18  many of the communities that are concerned over this

         19  change, I believe that it is important given the

         20  understanding of the concerns that people have,

         21  especially parents and educators, that we proceed

         22  with a lot of questions, that we do not precipitate

         23  the process, that we go slow but firmly making sure

         24  that we cover the grounds so that we protect the

         25  sanctity of what the educational environment must
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          2  continue to be, while we enhance the safety of the

          3  children in the school community.

          4                 And in that context I am supportive

          5  of the effort, particularly the aspect of training,

          6  and the linkages that I think are a necessity in

          7  order for us to help respond to our students and the

          8  challenges that they face with their parents and

          9  families.

         10                 I want to ask a few questions very

         11  directly, because how this merger develops and

         12  unfolds will dictate and determine how things will

         13  continue to proceed. So, if you can share the

         14  composition of the joint committee that is now in

         15  formation, who do you feel is appropriate to

         16  participate at that level overseeing this

         17  initiative? And what criterias did you use to

         18  identify who merits being part of this overseeing

         19  committee?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: My

         21  understanding is that there is -- the Committee has

         22  not yet been fully formed. There has been some

         23  discussion between the Mayor and the Chancellor

         24  about exactly the question you are talking about,

         25  the kind of people, the like. There certainly is
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          2  agreement that it must include some representatives

          3  of the Police Department and the Board of Ed, but

          4  also I think agreement that it will include

          5  community representatives in a variety of areas, and

          6  obviously a concern for making sure that it reflects

          7  in this very large City the geographic diversity of

          8  the City, of the racial diversity of the City and

          9  the like.

         10                 So, I think a concern for diversity,

         11  a concern for making sure that those who are on the

         12  ground responsible are participating and can bring

         13  their views in terms of both Board of Ed and Police,

         14  but also those parents obviously must be members of

         15  this Committee and community representatives. I

         16  think it is intended to be a committee that brings

         17  together all of those, as we said earlier, who

         18  really are both responsible for and concerned with

         19  the safety of our children in our schools in

         20  bringing together representatives of those.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I would like

         22  to encourage you to think also of students who are

         23  in the middle of all of this, and I was wondering,

         24  listening to both testimonies, but in particular to

         25  yours, Deputy Chancellor, what would the role of the
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          2  guidance office of a school be in this context given

          3  the role and the mission of that in connection to

          4  safety and in connection with the environment

          5  outside the school, and also the connection with the

          6  students in the circumstances that are often facing

          7  many of the students?

          8                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Well, I

          9  think the role of guidance staff at the schools

         10  remains precisely the same as it has always been,

         11  they are a critical resource to schools,

         12  particularly and individual kids and their families,

         13  in working with situations where kids face

         14  particular challenges or stress or problems, and in

         15  the same way that they have in the past, again,

         16  there is always this balance between support and

         17  sanction.

         18                 There are clearly, you know, you

         19  can't raise a kid without any sanctions and you

         20  can't raise a kid without any supports, and you need

         21  both, and I think every successful -- every parent

         22  knows it is the balance of those around discipline

         23  issues that is critical. In the same way a school, I

         24  think school staff know that there are circumstances

         25  where discipline isn't the appropriate response, a
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          2  kid is going through a terrific stress at home for

          3  some reason, a death in the family, a huge

          4  dislocation in the family or whatever, particularly,

          5  you know, younger kids and particularly as kids get

          6  older, they have to take increasing responsibility

          7  for their actions for managing their stress, but

          8  overall you still are in an educational environment

          9  saying is this an appropriate one where we ought to

         10  be sanctioning this kid, or is this a case where

         11  intervention is needed for this kid to help this kid

         12  get through a tough time, and what we are seeing is

         13  not a kid who is a risk to the community, but rather

         14  a kid who is, as people say sometimes, pleading for

         15  help. Those issues I think are the same today as

         16  they were before this merger, they continue in the

         17  same way, and guidance staff can be a very important

         18  component of school safety in that way.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I guess my

         20  point is that in developing the strategy, the role

         21  the guidance counselor ought to play, whether they

         22  are there to facilitate and be part of the process,

         23  in terms of whether we have enough of those

         24  resources as we become more effective in intervening

         25  --
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: -- Chances

          4  are that we need more of that support and that is a

          5  concern that I had.

          6                 I have a question in terms of whether

          7  you have, Mr. Chancellor, established a baseline

          8  that now currently exists in order to determine

          9  whether the number of incidents, since you

         10  initiated, have decreased?

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Well, this

         12  is a complicated story, unfortunately. The answer is

         13  yes, in the sense that the '97/'98 data, we believe

         14  that the Board put together, we believe really

         15  finally reflected a realistic assessment of what was

         16  occurring in schools.

         17                 One of the things that is strange

         18  about our data is it is probably more equivalent to

         19  police 911 data than it is to crime data. Incident

         20  reports really reflect any report of an event

         21  occurring, like a 911 report, and part of what makes

         22  us confident that that is a genuine baseline is, you

         23  saw in the years preceding that, the couple of years

         24  preceding that, a fairly rapid increase in the

         25  number of low level and kind of the minor incidence,
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          2  dramatic increase in the reporting of minor

          3  incidents. That is where you would expect to see a

          4  change in reporting occur. After all, major

          5  incidents are hard for any school or any person not

          6  to report. Everybody knows about them, they are

          7  throughout the community.

          8                 Where the weaknesses in the system

          9  most showed was really in the lots of minor

         10  incidents that could reflect a growing trend, or

         11  give you early warning of a need to intervene,

         12  rising tension, whatever, those kinds of things were

         13  often lost historically. So, what we saw for this

         14  period of time was declining major incidents, rising

         15  minor incidents, we believe that reflected far more

         16  effective reporting.

         17                 The only difficulty now is, obviously

         18  as we have transitioned to the Police Department,

         19  they use a different categorization scheme. We were

         20  just refining with the Vera Institute of Justice our

         21  own categorization scheme to get better and better,

         22  more and more refined reporting of the data.

         23                 Now of course I think that is going

         24  to be subject to some review and changes to be

         25  consistent with the way in which police analyze the
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          2  data.

          3                 So, yes, there is a baseline, there

          4  will be some translation difficulties I think and we

          5  will have to see how that shapes up in the next,

          6  during the course of this year, how much

          7  comparability, whether we have an apples to apples

          8  or some apples to oranges problems as we look to try

          9  and --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: As you

         11  proceed in that process, who will you be consulting

         12  besides the leadership of both agencies, and to make

         13  sure that you are in the right track and that you

         14  are really following an approach that is consistent

         15  with your intention?

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Well, I

         17  think from our view on the school side, this is not

         18  an area where we claim great expertise. This is

         19  obviously an area where the Police Department has a

         20  great deal of expertise. What we have sought to do

         21  was to engage the Vera Institute of Criminal

         22  Justice, a very nationally respected organization

         23  that I guess actually did some work with the

         24  Department and some of its own data work, and they

         25  worked with us prior to the partnership, the
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          2  development of the partnership. They worked with us

          3  in refining our own system.

          4                 I think they do bring some useful

          5  value in that they know both of our systems and can

          6  sometimes translate to each other and we understand,

          7  we on the Board can understand the police because

          8  they know that and they also know -- they are in a

          9  sense a kind of on the boundary between us and able

         10  to help interpret each of our systems to each other,

         11  so I think they have been a valuable resource to

         12  date and I expect we will continue to work with them

         13  around some of this.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: What is the

         15  staff level that you currently have? I heard the

         16  number you share, but my understanding is that the

         17  current staff level is under the one that you

         18  reported, more or less around 3,000, and with that

         19  there are reports that there may be shortage in

         20  terms of security in some places, so I am just

         21  wondering what the actual number is?

         22                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The actual number

         23  is a little under 3,300, and we will be hiring

         24  additional officers in July.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I am sorry?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: The number is

          3  3,300, a little under 3,300, and we will be hiring

          4  additional officers to fill in the remainder in

          5  July.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Okay.

          7                 One last question. In terms of the

          8  job description for school security officers, we

          9  call them like that, my understanding was that when

         10  there was an incident let's say in a school,

         11  officers, part of the description of officers would

         12  be to rush to the hospital or attend in such

         13  emergencies. Also, whenever there was a report or

         14  there was a process, a hearing that would go before

         15  the superintendent, that officers would participate

         16  in those hearings and my understanding is that as

         17  far as the job description, there are some changes

         18  that preclude them from doing a search

         19  participation, and I was just wondering what changes

         20  are taking place with the merger on the job

         21  description?

         22                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: As far as the

         23  discipline hearings are concerned, that has not

         24  changed. They still attend disciplinary hearings.

         25                 We are in the process of doing an
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          2  analysis and development of a new job description to

          3  include all of the functions that they performed

          4  before, as well as codifying it, because in fact

          5  there has never been a specific formal job

          6  description for school safety officers.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Let me just

          8  add, the only thing I can think of that there may

          9  have been some confusion about that would lead to a

         10  question of that kind is that there is one change,

         11  which is, the Board is in a kind of in loco parentis

         12  (sic) and a responsibility, we take responsibility

         13  for children on behalf of their parents, parents

         14  entrust their children to us and we have some

         15  responsibility to sort of ensure the continuity of

         16  parental responsibility for kids.

         17                 Historically when there was an

         18  arrest, if a student was arrested and taken to a

         19  precinct for booking, we always would first try

         20  immediately to reach the parent. If the parent was

         21  unreachable to attend that child to the precinct,

         22  then we would send a school safety agent as the

         23  representative of the school system, representing

         24  the school system, and the school system's

         25  continuing responsibility for that student, to
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          2  attend that student that when they went to the

          3  precinct for booking until the parent could arrive.

          4  So there was always someone in the parental role, if

          5  you will.

          6                 Now, now that school safety agents

          7  work for the Department, obviously that wouldn't be

          8  appropriate, so that is the one change, I think the

          9  only change really in terms of school safety agent

         10  function of the kind you are talking about.

         11                 Now schools understand that it must

         12  be a member of the school staff that has to attend

         13  the child in that --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Instead of

         15  the officer?

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Instead of

         17  the school safety agent, today that would simply be

         18  a Police Department representative in a sense

         19  attending the Police Department process and it

         20  doesn't really quite fit the requirement for the

         21  Board to ensure continuing Board of Ed

         22  representation until the parent arrives.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I will turn

         24  it back to the Chair, but I would like to just

         25  indicate that I think it would be very important for
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          2  the joint committee that has been established to

          3  work very closely on every aspect of implementation

          4  in terms of this initiative and that we also, beyond

          5  this Committee hearing that we hold periodically,

          6  play some role. Because this is very delicate and an

          7  area of great concern to parents and the community

          8  and it requires for all to participate and to be

          9  mindful and watchful of every step.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Could I

         11  just add one quick thing, because I think it is

         12  important --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I just want to

         14  interject just a moment, because I know you have to

         15  leave periodically. While I don't agree with my

         16  colleague that outside of this Committee, I believe

         17  that since we instituted this, and this is a Charter

         18  mandate that this Committee functions, I am going to

         19  ask the Board of Education that some time we have

         20  informal kind of discussions that might relate to

         21  issues of personnel and so forth that you have

         22  extended to us, that that might be a forum for the

         23  Police Department to be a part of that with this

         24  Committee as well, it is open to the Committee,

         25  whomever wants to come, it is not an open forum, but
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          2  it is also a forum where our staff can interact with

          3  your staff, that that might be an excellent time to

          4  clear up some of these kind of personnel issues that

          5  we know have to be confidential up to a certain

          6  point.

          7                 So, I am going to ask that that be

          8  taken under consideration and if you will get back

          9  to me as soon as you can.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Could I

         11  just add, Madame Chair, a quick point on this

         12  question of the number of school safety officers?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Yes.

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: I just will

         15  put it in historical perspective, it's now 3,300

         16  roughly. During what basically has been the historic

         17  cycle is the Board has hired during the summer,

         18  deployed for the opening of school, and then

         19  obviously there is some attrition during the course

         20  of the year, that is true in any organization, and a

         21  new class is added.

         22                 This past summer the opening of

         23  school force was at 3,400, that is a historic high,

         24  higher by a considerable measure, I think when I

         25  arrived it was under 3,000, I believe.
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          2                 So, while there is always a concern

          3  that there is always a use and a need for more, I do

          4  want to just emphasize that over the course of the

          5  past three years the number of officers, school

          6  safety agents, excuse me, school safety agents has

          7  increased by a substantial measure, by over 10

          8  percent, well over 10 percent and is at a historic

          9  high.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

         11  Dilan.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Good

         13  morning. I had several questions regarding the

         14  budget, however, I will defer those to the budget

         15  process hearing. I have some questions regarding the

         16  agreement and how we will proceed in terms of

         17  future, if money will go directly to the Board then

         18  the Police Department or directly to the Police

         19  Department, but we will deal with that later.

         20                 In regard to the 3,400 school safety

         21  staff, how many of them, actual school safety

         22  officers that are in schools, how many are

         23  supervisors of chief?

         24                 Also, in view of the fact that they

         25  are now the Police Department, will they go through
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          2  similar training as police officer to perhaps maybe

          3  the police academy, different type than they

          4  previously received under the Board of Education? Is

          5  the psychological testing similar? Commissioner,

          6  could you explain those?

          7                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: First, relative

          8  to your question of deployment, there is one

          9  Assistant Chief, one Inspector, one Captain, three

         10  Lieutenants, one Sergeant, one Police Officer, three

         11  School Safety Managers in the Division of School

         12  Safety.

         13                 Then there are Associate Supervisor

         14  of School Safety Security 3, there are two of those;

         15  there are 12 Associate Supervisors of School

         16  Security 2; and there are 16 Associate Supervisors

         17  of School Security 1.  There are 77 supervisors,

         18  there are 354 School Safety Officer Level 3, 209

         19  level 2, and 25 42 level 1.

         20                 Relative to their training they will

         21  not receive police officer training, they will

         22  receive specialized training relative to their

         23  duties as school safety agents, which will be

         24  developed and is developing right now, although we

         25  have put them through training into the
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          2  administrative functions and some of the policies of

          3  the Police Departments, this will be an ongoing

          4  effort.

          5                 And the answer to your question on

          6  the psychologicals is, yes, we will use

          7  psychological evaluations.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Okay.

          9                 Do you see raising the standards of

         10  the quality of officers you will be looking for in

         11  the future? Or you basically will be using the same

         12  criteria?

         13                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: I believe the

         14  standards will be raised. I believe that the use of

         15  psychological tests and more in-depth screening will

         16  benefit everybody.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Okay.

         18  One more question.

         19                 In terms of the Police Department,

         20  now that these school safety officers are within

         21  your Department, how many members of your staff have

         22  been assigned to this Bureau to handle only school

         23  safety?

         24                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: There are about

         25  25 people who have been assigned to the School
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          2  Safety Division, although we have dedicated

          3  full-time although they are in the precincts,

          4  sergeants in all 76 precincts.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: That is

          6  in addition to whatever duties they had; is that

          7  correct?

          8                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, that is now

          9  their only function.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Their

         11  only function?

         12                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, so they are

         13  in fact, although they don't report to the School

         14  Safety Division, their only function is school

         15  safety.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Okay.

         17  Thank you very much, Commissioner.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: We have Council

         19  Member Fiala from Staten Island.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you,

         21  Madame Chair.

         22                 Good morning, Commissioner, and

         23  Deputy Chancellor. I have three very quick

         24  questions, and you just touched upon it,

         25  Commissioner Safir.
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          2                 In addition to those sergeants there

          3  is to be a captain designated official in each

          4  borough command who is the, I guess point person for

          5  the Borough Commander, are those positions filled on

          6  a permanent basis now?

          7                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: Yes, they are.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: One of the

          9  changes that took place under this merger plan had

         10  to do with the disciplinary process. I am reading

         11  something here where previously school safety

         12  officers were often called to testify before the

         13  superintendent, in a suspension hearing. Is it true

         14  that under the new plan that will not longer be the

         15  case, that a school safety officer will not?

         16                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: No, they will

         17  continue to.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: All right, so

         19  that is a misnomer then.

         20                 And finally, for non-criminal

         21  behavioral disputes, how will that be reported and

         22  to which entity?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: For

         24  non-criminal behavioral disputes, the principal will

         25  report those incidents to the Board of Education to
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          2  the Data Collection Center at the Board of

          3  Education, and the Data Collection Center at the

          4  Board of Education will maintain all of those

          5  records of non-criminal disputes at the Board. There

          6  will be no --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: So you will

          8  have those available --

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: We will

         10  have those available, and we will be able to do

         11  statistical reporting on non-criminal activities, as

         12  we have in the past.

         13                 But the records will all be kept at

         14  the Board of Ed and the names in non-criminal

         15  disputes, those kinds of concerns, all of those

         16  kinds of confidentiality concerns will be

         17  maintained.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Okay. Thank you

         19  all.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I thank all of

         21  you.

         22                 Commissioner, thank you so much for

         23  appearing. I don't want to put you on the spot, if

         24  you had to send a message to the parents out there

         25  in the City of New York, would you have a message to
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          2  reassure them that this is a process that is going

          3  to be monitored, et cetera?

          4                 COMMISSIONER SAFIR: One of the things

          5  that is very important to us in the Police

          6  Department is to make sure that the parents

          7  understand that the goal here and the objective and

          8  in fact what will happen in practice is that there

          9  will be safer schools for their children. This is

         10  not in any way designed to criminalize discipline in

         11  the school, to put in an oppressive force in the

         12  schools, it is quite the opposite.

         13                 The whole idea is, as I have

         14  discussed with the Chancellor many times, is this is

         15  a collegial partnership in which both of our

         16  interests are the interests of the children's

         17  welfare and their safety, and we believe that with

         18  the expertise that we have in training, in

         19  evaluation and in supervision, that this will be a

         20  positive for all of the children, for the schools

         21  and for the City.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Thank you.

         23                 Deputy Chancellor?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: I think the

         25  Commissioner said it very well.
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          2                 No further comment.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: This concludes

          4  the Education hearing.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 11:30 a.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 23rd day of February 1999.
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         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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